
Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport - Board of Directors - Meeting Agenda 

January 8, 2024 5:30 P.M. 
Administrative Conference Room 80 Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine 

 
Call to Order 
 
                                                                                                             
I. Consent Items 

 
II. Minutes  

1. November 13, 2024 Meeting 
 
III. Financial Report – Treasurer 

1. FY 2025 YTD Financials 
2. Fuel Sales Year over Year Comparisons 

 
IV. Communications –  

 
V. Public Comment – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Board of Directors about any 

issue directly related to airport business. 
 

VI. Old Business - None 
 
VII. New Business –  

1. Order Authorizing an Amendment to the FY2025 Airport Operations Airfield Maintenance 
Budget for an additional $50,000 for the purposes of Wildlife Management and Obstruction 
Removal 

 
VIII. Reports 

1. Airport Director Report 
• FY2026 Budget Drivers and Schedule Discussion 
• Update on FBO management 
• Update on CDS/T-hangar development 
• Update on Private Box Hangar Development/Fielding Properties LLC 

2. Board of Directors Reports  
 
IX. Executive Sessions - None 
 
X. Adjournment (Next Board Meeting, February Budget Meeting – Date TBD) 
 

  

 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport - Board of Directors - Meeting Minutes 

November 13, 2024 5:30 P.M. 
Administrative Conference Room 80 Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine 

 
Present: L. Allen, T. Roy, M. Blais, M. Garside, W. Poulin, D. Chittim 
Absent: P. Crowell, B. Weisner 
 
WORKSHOP – FY26-30 Draft Capital Improvement Plan Presentation and Discussion 
                                                                                                              
I. Consent Items 

 
II. Minutes  

1. October 16, 2024 Meeting – On a motion by M. Garside and second by D. Chittim, minutes 
were approved 5-0-1 (D. Chittim abstaining) 

 
III. Financial Report – Treasurer – On a motion by D. Chittim and seconded by M. Garside, financial 

reports were accepted by a vote of 6-0 
1. FY 2025 YTD Financials 
2. Fuel Sales Year over Year Comparisons 

 
IV. Communications –  None 

 
V. Public Comment – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Board of Directors about any 

issue directly related to airport business. 
 

VI. Old Business - None 
 
VII. New Business - None 

 
VIII. Reports 

1. Airport Director Report 
• Update on Line Services 
• Update on CDS/T-hangar development 
• Update on Private Box Hangar Development/Fielding Properties LLC 

2. Board of Directors Reports  
 
IX. Executive Sessions - None 
 
X. Adjournment – On a motion by T. Roy and seconded by D. Chittim, meeting was adjourned on a 6-0 

vote. 
 

  

 
 



CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:40
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 06

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET   YTD EXPENDED   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET      USED

9001 Airport Personnel                    

9001 611000  Regular Salaries                  170,000           0     170,000            .00            .00     170,000.00     .0%
9001 613000  Overtime                            9,000           0       9,000            .00            .00       9,000.00     .0%
9001 617020  Fringe Benefits                   118,283           0     118,283       1,445.48            .00     116,837.52    1.2%
9001 617030  Professional Develo                15,000           0      15,000       3,424.69            .00      11,575.31   22.8%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          312,283           0     312,283       4,870.17            .00     307,412.83    1.6%

     TOTAL Airport Personnel                   312,283           0     312,283       4,870.17            .00     307,412.83    1.6%

9002 Airport Operations                   

9002 611000  Regular Salaries                        0           0           0      86,349.72            .00     -86,349.72  100.0%
9002 613000  OT - Regular                            0           0           0       1,956.86            .00      -1,956.86  100.0%
9002 617020  Fringe Benefits                         0           0           0      44,742.14            .00     -44,742.14  100.0%
9002 617030  Professional Develo                     0           0           0       4,330.49            .00      -4,330.49  100.0%
9002 628000  Contract Services                       0           0           0      98,080.79            .00     -98,080.79  100.0%
9002 628016  Legal Services                          0           0           0       3,568.00            .00      -3,568.00  100.0%
9002 628019  Building Repairs                        0           0           0      13,885.15            .00     -13,885.15  100.0%
9002 628020  Vehicle Repairs                         0           0           0       4,559.28            .00      -4,559.28  100.0%
9002 628039  AIRFIELD MAINTENANC                     0           0           0       1,815.39       5,000.00      -6,815.39  100.0%
9002 633030  Fuels and Oil for V                26,000          43      26,043         104.29          42.65      25,895.71     .6%
9002 633040  Snow and Ice Contro                 1,000           0       1,000            .00            .00       1,000.00     .0%
9002 633042  Pavement Maintenanc                     0           0           0       1,336.56            .00      -1,336.56  100.0%
9002 640000  Telephones/Cell Sti                     0           0           0       4,056.82            .00      -4,056.82  100.0%
9002 641100  Utilities                         115,000           0     115,000       9,134.67            .00     105,865.33    7.9%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          142,000          43     142,043     273,920.16       5,042.65    -136,920.16  196.4%

     TOTAL Airport Operations                  142,000          43     142,043     273,920.16       5,042.65    -136,920.16  196.4%

9003 Airport Maintenance                  

9003 628000  PS - Gen/Profession               140,000           0     140,000            .00            .00     140,000.00     .0%
9003 628019  Building Maintenanc                33,000         500      33,500       6,620.14         500.00      26,379.86   21.3%
9003 628020  Vehicle Maintenance                25,000           0      25,000      10,097.80         565.61      14,336.59   42.7%
9003 628021  Radio Maintenance                   1,500           0       1,500            .00            .00       1,500.00     .0%

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=iUErKC3IMCb7yzGmesD1DVkbRcpew7FH2d5HcLMKBQG%2FJOlkzFsSgMK%2B%2FMojc6V2
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=1QZFjMQ3pljVtHAKf1xoMil2qADj8dys7f%2BbNnHyHkuhvlQ7YFHX%2FlYkRcTtNI8s
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TKKQEqg1aTrMtIgujWZbA3Yr1GLXcPDt5jXkxk7Rpxh03NHZEV1GPZoWMxymnvtP
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FfUDIlPa%2B59%2BmQCrM6nCpvT8BpQvqhsbKU5TAnpYTtPW9GWtn33XAK%2FxxOI1VT8r
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WnZ6gtexNoS7RHP6LNSp75yKJW6s6BCeV84CaVB8x%2FtGFFiJU1UIzKDx2P6eIbiE
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=A%2FaqDdj%2B71Im7N5JWRa65EbdlL6iLXgLJAJS44%2BqAF4NxNWP%2B0a%2BQ3%2B8S1aMQUrA
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=kjqRHCv%2B8Pavx9wh7LXNtUaSkK0Pim48PoKUNRgb%2FC8qGYfpD96sf03ON1cmUB%2B%2B
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=oFCHE7AhT%2Fwn9l5n2pchue5XqRxdAR50VGkW%2B6MIIrfiwudPXGWCBFgQoMsQ25Fo
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=xRG%2BO%2B9uvWlhJI7hn06p8I%2BybVIbvGkitvoAtL2w%2BT4lSJtrPT%2B3J4IUNxnObWPA
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=55mkLzPzD1LnyxTsGGyniylTKnTqHA5olA42OICzhKpRNqqsyDXLRzTbbyPuLng4
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0DfPzrkb8zU84eMC0hSClLaBXLyEuDeIB1yXYxQRnaoFBu3kJMusvon1L6p5GyZ9
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ZGq18HrPey8k4lt3DreltH%2B55C1U%2F5nelp3UlFUNRYELRW2L9ZYMaeBEIloRO5tZ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AoC4SkXEYsrbbS%2Fy3Zu5amnDD84EbwIt4kuxnLdzbwox0KUvYrTSdFt9%2BMQnLW1v
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=JqPy2oejtdcRivrie6MVKSCaQBeALrysN2qTWSoTXZ3yzmOpSXwJaDFCpaFBJJ2O
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BbdC5awmVqImHk9U1sdyzk11TklvplxiDNgpsYm7%2FN0gNbCam0ati9yJWdf5%2FBrF
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=hgMQ8yVrvhAl7%2BJ9ChvSsEkJ6p1IdDa3y%2FozWhLMqcDvE0ucOB4yCeqa%2B7iPJNJT
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=71yILWPfWvew8Jtl0%2FZtIXoqEThk8%2BGaq%2BJDdSu%2BjQ6fUw74LSl8xZATHps%2B9ABM
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=YBjIMAguj1%2BWy7Yt%2BphBMOz8badlDJmVBl4VvS97PABuRMvfotQi27pG4trN3Dr2
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=oocmu0EX0aPaOKfYrbqe3h5TjMg%2B3m%2FVGdBG5%2Bg1Pr0k9mf7ZQY73JYI7Vp%2Bidm3
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=U41xNwf02O1gfGxUxjHXJ8zs5a52yTO%2BO3n%2F1ia3rlaglgwS9snt%2BTfL2mGqoxJs
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=vigaCd6d4FuKaFmrSrWcVYE2%2FaBkfXYke31SoXnuVWtevoXezREVOZBGlJoV5c6O
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=81wP3s%2FhIAViKNIUzRTWTd4%2BJ8Polnw066LIMN3jxM7a9orHh%2F%2Fw6yfaem4%2B4aQ6


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:40
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 06

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET   YTD EXPENDED   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET      USED

9003 628038  Electrical Maintena                 4,000           0       4,000            .00            .00       4,000.00     .0%
9003 628039  Airfield Maintenanc                32,250       5,136      37,386      14,979.64       3,587.43      18,819.15   49.7%
9003 633041  Computer/Office Mac                10,000           0      10,000         226.97            .00       9,773.03    2.3%
9003 633042  Pavement Maintenanc                29,000         708      29,708      17,479.50         707.56      11,520.50   61.2%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          274,750       6,344     281,094      49,404.05       5,360.60     226,329.13   19.5%

     TOTAL Airport Maintenance                 274,750       6,344     281,094      49,404.05       5,360.60     226,329.13   19.5%

9004 Airport Administration               

9004 620000  Advertising and  Pr                 7,500           0       7,500            .00            .00       7,500.00     .0%
9004 628000  Professional Servic                42,800      20,000      62,800            .00      20,000.00      42,800.00   31.8%
9004 628016  Legal Services                     20,000           0      20,000      -3,450.50            .00      23,450.50  -17.3%
9004 628041  Hangar Lease                      115,000           0     115,000            .00            .00     115,000.00     .0%
9004 628056  Life Flight Land Fu                12,000           0      12,000            .00            .00      12,000.00     .0%
9004 633000  Office Supplies                     2,500           0       2,500         411.23            .00       2,088.77   16.4%
9004 640000  Telephone and Inter                 9,000           0       9,000            .00            .00       9,000.00     .0%
9004 645000  Insurance Premiums                 33,400           0      33,400      13,388.79            .00      20,011.21   40.1%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          242,200      20,000     262,200      10,349.52      20,000.00     231,850.48   11.6%

     TOTAL Airport Administration              242,200      20,000     262,200      10,349.52      20,000.00     231,850.48   11.6%

9010 Airport-FBO                          

9010 633047  PROCESSING FEE                          0           0           0       4,812.93            .00      -4,812.93  100.0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                                0           0           0       4,812.93            .00      -4,812.93  100.0%

     TOTAL Airport-FBO                               0           0           0       4,812.93            .00      -4,812.93  100.0%

9015 Services (FBO) Expenses              

9015 611000  Regular Salaries                        0           0           0         400.00            .00        -400.00  100.0%
9015 620000  Advertising                             0           0           0       1,057.58            .00      -1,057.58  100.0%
9015 628000  Prof/Contracted Ser               200,500           0     200,500     147,140.38            .00      53,359.62   73.4%
9015 628019  Building Maintenanc                     0           0           0       6,369.99            .00      -6,369.99  100.0%

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=CCTpSTm0nUEQWiW3KZKyYzVgSeQeXLRVcC98xHRyo5bkO04C2EWCa1Zw9k60jgtw
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=TPKWw2NBD0zXe50oTLZqvWKr6ZeYZfgbcolgXffLksbX6%2Fw%2Fceo%2FKkHm2e7KV6tY
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=oG5g50x2TvH8hcw7GZxVuFFgYlgGCGZT3gQCriOyN%2F%2Fhmyw07t%2FfwCZbtQ0qEDLj
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=GDH4wkznDUqcjFv%2B%2BOSqbLqgemmTCpD3B6M4wBXYrNkPq5B00fV5ClZ9HMQc5Qx6
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=MygmK83yP9LcpqqvHc7t0hguE6BxiWEFGRjgPVqr4VTP%2B4GV2t2gYR9l9hzbRvPW
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=PiUl9x2jcb2ySrHH8o7%2FcaHGj%2FUZ53Pr%2FUxH90XxH82Zs3FD7urlKmWNuAPJha5C
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3NiHM7H2KYnS7mOLMZGBHLtbzZjcXsmXzK7jFoW9ZxPMti%2BIL0o8wlx3qhM6iheG
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=T2pwFYgPH%2BBwINUBzxWhQ73pGeJ3o4B4sur0flgH%2BTKoqdbJ1EozQJvhs6aPlijP
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=m3kxXu9lx%2FuCAJt7S0Q4KG0%2BlRnTS9lIBhC%2BzFHv6rgO0jBDwjCnGoNb%2F6YAHFhR
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=EgFkS0ZfoVF6%2FMXESI5Lh9lfs3vsb%2FxqhHwl9G30%2FR%2BSmvKTnpVurRyOuOh1lhUH
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7X0T%2Bn9kg1sdsrdD%2BRC9GGajETpKoml464ffkNtzEs2orGZ6ToMeASN%2B9kVQp75F
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Mwv4XfU4Da0L9LsJx2EJeQN3brE0HYwhp%2FfLgeQths6hEOkdArzTaTBkZ1%2F%2FNgms
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=WQ9CThsABKsHLhmZfR1e%2B3gk3MFa6wtozDQHODiKShuApAVSkDFiJWIoJuwrBuQk
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=bHgjEXBmO4RucgYZZS5BPINaHQuODVC%2Bjso71lEh%2FFLqYpfBaxnOhn4jp5HUElbo
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=AXsmHON%2F3Ht1k%2BlRG%2Bn7VeGwDGJiw2ygcP8qOe1C%2FU9QTVLJJPJ%2F1jaeNM7M%2F4MI
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BWcC4PHebpPcGSYX%2F4%2B2adF1yhfHJ53SjB%2FXbST8CSQz4%2Ftm8wBTCP06J3wG5raN
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=deikG3t3Bl%2BT%2BR%2FCfbtfagNJUQrLjK5xAwCMnLlYD5%2FXEnMuX%2BCkFRrLdk6FYlnQ


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:40
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      3

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 06

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET   YTD EXPENDED   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET      USED

9015 628021  Plant  Equipment                    1,800           0       1,800         565.80            .00       1,234.20   31.4%
9015 628041  FBO HANGAR LOAN                         0           0           0     115,000.00            .00    -115,000.00  100.0%
9015 628044  Ground Support Equi                 9,700          94       9,794       3,297.43          93.76       6,402.57   34.6%
9015 628071  Fuel Flowage                       17,500           0      17,500       7,069.80            .00      10,430.20   40.4%
9015 633000  Office Supplies                         0           0           0         777.48            .00        -777.48  100.0%
9015 633030  Fuels & Oils                      702,500           0     702,500     297,745.05      96,716.83     308,038.12   56.2%
9015 641100  Utilities                               0           0           0      13,858.80            .00     -13,858.80  100.0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                          932,000          94     932,094     593,282.31      96,810.59     242,000.86   74.0%

     TOTAL Services (FBO) Expenses             932,000          94     932,094     593,282.31      96,810.59     242,000.86   74.0%

     TOTAL Airport Operations                1,903,233      26,480   1,929,713     936,639.14     127,213.84     865,860.21   55.1%

                           TOTAL EXPENSES    1,903,233      26,480   1,929,713     936,639.14     127,213.84     865,860.21

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Y1EwczWAAn5ObDsyCxaKAv4G94Lw57LqNMkrTJrT0pLPxZISZ5txTM8LGAhAlnDg
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3jUozHa%2BbmYs6Q2wSaD2MMgp%2F0CjPjoID2BUQtDK0w4WPLawa5gSfLBP4Mc67cl8
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=7nt4GorGHg1aPExeDpwodFDv33nw9GGxumasWDi2c4Nq3KPJFZ6noIVSmf4Tsv8a
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=o0OFKTrlM4OqPyX6h67IvxQNjz9aT18bw3pvJZYmbqTCIZHrM%2BjoU%2BD7yYjRRuT0
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=zNeOwj3S5FceesQPCLOoipqNZeUjQoT2E9TO0n9hI%2BKo2K9hV54xtdNrOdKs1KFT
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HGiW4YFMt7WzVu9sg3OIAK%2BZs9%2FmVTDZBM%2B3%2FCeo8avFwg3rGFsIsMPIfRIPuR9s
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=y3OuoVc6wxdrPUdfmbWCjswuodUn9SxK5I99fAdm28uPP8JwBkAf4tOQMCnBBR0u


CITY OF AUBURN

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:39
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2025 06

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
9000     Airport Operations                    APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET   YTD EXPENDED   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET      USED

9000 Airport Operations                   

9000 420035  Fees - Fuel Flowage               -18,500           0     -18,500      -8,480.04            .00     -10,019.96   45.8%
9000 420040  Fees - Landings                   -40,000           0     -40,000     -24,262.96            .00     -15,737.04   60.7%
9000 429005  Christian Hill Mate              -100,000           0    -100,000     -29,195.12            .00     -70,804.88   29.2%
9000 429025  Rental Fees                      -175,000           0    -175,000    -103,759.74            .00     -71,240.26   59.3%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                         -333,500           0    -333,500    -165,697.86            .00    -167,802.14   49.7%

     TOTAL Airport Operations                 -333,500           0    -333,500    -165,697.86            .00    -167,802.14   49.7%

9005 Airport Other Income                 

9005 401600  Municipal Subsidy                -410,000           0    -410,000    -307,500.00            .00    -102,500.00   75.0%
9005 420063  Service Fees                         -500           0        -500      -1,490.72            .00         990.72  298.1%
9005 422000  Investment Income                  -3,000           0      -3,000      -3,127.80            .00         127.80  104.3%
9005 429013  Sale of Assets                    -75,000           0     -75,000    -204,744.16            .00     129,744.16  273.0%
9005 429019  FLIGHT SIMULATOR                   -2,000           0      -2,000        -631.00            .00      -1,369.00   31.6%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                         -490,500           0    -490,500    -517,493.68            .00      26,993.68  105.5%

     TOTAL Airport Other Income               -490,500           0    -490,500    -517,493.68            .00      26,993.68  105.5%

9010 Airport-FBO                          

9010 420035  Fees - Fuel  and Oi            -1,007,750           0  -1,007,750    -418,382.13            .00    -589,367.87   41.5%
9010 420051   Tie Down/Hangar/Co               -60,000           0     -60,000     -36,722.27            .00     -23,277.73   61.2%
9010 420059  Fees-Catering                           0           0           0      -3,146.35            .00       3,146.35  100.0%
9010 420060  After Hour Call Out               -10,000           0     -10,000     -13,575.00            .00       3,575.00  135.8%
9010 420061  Flight Line Service                -7,000           0      -7,000      -4,175.00            .00      -2,825.00   59.6%
9010 420064  Rental Car                         -3,000           0      -3,000      -2,246.94            .00        -753.06   74.9%
9010 420086  TRANSIENT TIE DOWN/                     0           0           0      -9,075.00            .00       9,075.00  100.0%
9010 420911  Facility Fee                            0           0           0     -23,470.00            .00      23,470.00  100.0%

     TOTAL NO PROJECT                       -1,087,750           0  -1,087,750    -510,792.69            .00    -576,957.31   47.0%

     TOTAL Airport-FBO                      -1,087,750           0  -1,087,750    -510,792.69            .00    -576,957.31   47.0%

     TOTAL Airport Operations               -1,911,750           0  -1,911,750  -1,193,984.23            .00    -717,765.77   62.5%

                           TOTAL REVENUES   -1,911,750           0  -1,911,750  -1,193,984.23            .00    -717,765.77

https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=QdS7PGfvj2Yh2%2FdSJ318jj8W8MeT9116BdZBcN6yCF2BPMnQwqPkLi%2BziOYgMGkz
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4tH9R9ruTBD9XpNh6A6XwooQ0G5QeaFCDwf%2BPbNDU3X7E5vNrTe18JvSrHSXnIHz
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=36NjTkxPs%2FDmocFTNcILBkQMn4AU6DMyuJQ2vxLZXhc%2BPq%2FkvsBn%2BAvp9ah90bs5
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=9xyoNkhkiDgngmNQHBIj7SDC4JIYDq4wEp8Q7kD1e9Vrh8Pq9qrPruKMX%2FZEwTAe
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=mLe2jWD3ePTKKUjxoVl3Hnlcvp4uE6kx1qxwPxIXcH4s%2FOD3zYsksUypXO5FjUYK
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=h%2B35IqZ2te1eXEeou9hrQNF8PwHk4dh6CpxQt1QnUfa1c7Mga08MzMPO8i%2Bv1r5c
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wBTwv9KA18VexceG67TN%2BclkrVL7vPvhgQmk5p%2BpeNIDhUoOYa2%2BaYALv9leLH0k
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2FWwKyl%2FHevQcW7k65wibfowdpGkXbWi2sn87AsuIwIpnqqJjhEUNolclBWGrIvlQ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FeXutJP3NhWbZrlJK977WqvqJliaI%2ByZYP85SOzfubH48pkjiWNX9DSRXTbUosEv
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=HmCejtkpuHdSvE6UHhRbK8LCsz%2BZ7IdDso0sMOdf5qFRNLZGzzaxc8tRg6zz2%2BCN
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pFtjz9Jotv7yoIvWq27rCfK5WSRQn%2FYNvv%2FYpAO8XFR6suLQpbVHkeZAORPeuX%2FQ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=vlEg%2BioDCswHEVjvICWfNhruWC5SsYoNvvtnMyCToso2NBnZquOMwDrNyEyg7PzP
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ii7Dpe%2BNwIzrtFobCzTlh5wFcSlkybZk1sadJs3V%2F%2BH4dqvniH8NCDw9E9G6la1A
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BovLrDnRSF9g6L80kEcNFwgv%2FMWOiQ1N%2FMw%2FfrYECzpM7RvizmqeZ4AtRhKPMatc
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5%2BtELZSmshaoSyf8Yu0yR%2BpTGgGJlj2a4eELp4NpQFsf6CORVdmEFlOa4nplAcxZ
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uz389wu28PQARmr9DICMXAgnKlmukzQAUTH5Bomv0%2FP8Gxb2rNIgT97mChclL2hx
https://cityofauburnmemunisapp.tylerhost.net/4924prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=UxQQwJ%2FEcs3yDSZSJihfZL2V2B4HtT99xHn8b7llB8bnKWoqggnlUVT4RmEBAjdu


CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2025  6

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:37
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      1

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9000 Airport Operations                                              FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             9000     011010       Airport Checking                        -75,076.03           471,202.11
             9000     011030       Cash-Petty Cash                                .00               700.00
             9000     011140       Interest Receivable                            .00                  .01
             9000     011530       Accounts Receivable                         307.27            39,141.78
             9000     011540       Allowance for Uncollect Accts                  .00        -1,747,727.63
             9000     011545       Lease Receivable                               .00         3,028,598.23
             9000     011810       Prepaid Expenses                               .00            27,880.51
             9000     011900       INVENTORY FOR RESALE                           .00            58,465.97
             9000     012110       Land                                           .00         1,717,208.27
             9000     012111       Land Improvements                              .00        26,972,543.84
             9000     012112       Construction In Progress                       .00         1,941,472.98
             9000     012310       Buildings & Bldg Improvements                  .00         4,458,442.82
             9000     012410       Machinery & Equipment                          .00         1,763,883.52
             9000     012900       Accumulated Depreciation                       .00       -17,876,614.76
             9000     013000       DEF OUTFLOW-NET PENSION                        .00            32,758.94
             9000     016000       DUE TO / DUE FROM                        15,158.00       -14,420,137.52
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                            -59,610.76         6,467,819.07 
LIABILITIES                                                                                                
             9000     024210       Accounts Payable                               .00           -11,000.00
             9000     024230       Loan Payable-City of Auburn                    .00          -599,531.67
             9000     024231       Loan Payable-City of Lewiston                  .00          -599,531.67
             9000     024240       ACCRUED INTEREST                               .00           -20,426.13
             9000     024610       Accrued Payroll                                .00            -3,150.30
             9000     024611       Compensated Absences                           .00           -23,502.74
             9000     024710       Federal Withholding Taxes                -1,137.95            -1,137.95
             9000     024711       State Withholding Taxes                    -464.00              -464.00
             9000     024712       FICA Withholding Taxes                   -1,088.46            -1,088.46
             9000     024713       Medicare Withholding Taxes                 -254.56              -254.56
             9000     024730       ICMA Deferred Comp-City                        .00              -240.00
             9000     024734       ME State Retirement                            .00              -734.36
             9000     024742       ICMA-Airport                                313.10              -985.75
             9000     024758       MMA Health Ins-Airport                      913.77            -1,522.95
             9000     024765       Dental                                       32.84               -54.79
             9000     024772       Flex Spending-Airport                       -20.00              -540.00
             9000     024773       Vision                                        4.18                -4.22
             9000     024829       DUE TO STATE - SALES TAX                       .00              -149.37
             9000     025000       DEF INFLOW NET PENSION                         .00           -23,516.00
             9000     026000       NET PENSION LIABILITY                          .00           -40,564.00
             9000     029000       Deferred Inflow - Leases                       .00        -1,238,990.41
                   TOTAL LIABILITIES                                        -1,701.08        -2,567,389.33 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             9000     037000       Ctrl Total - Encumbrances               -24,132.69           127,213.84
             9000     037100       FB ASSIGNED CITY                               .00        -1,836,398.00
             9000     037104       FB UNASSIGNED                                  .00        -1,806,686.65
             9000     037201       CTRL TOTAL-BUD FB DESIGNATED             24,132.69          -127,213.84
             9000     037301       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Undesignat                 .00            17,963.19
             9000     047000       Ctrl Total - Revenues                   -49,167.77        -1,193,984.23



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2025  6

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:37
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      2

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9000 Airport Operations                                              FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE
             9000     047001       CONTROL - ESTIMATED REVENUE                    .00         1,911,750.00
             9000     057000       CTRL TOTAL-EXPENDITURES                 110,479.61           936,639.14
             9000     057001       CTRL TOTAL-APPROPRIATIONS                      .00        -1,929,713.19
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                       61,311.84        -3,900,429.74 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                   59,610.76        -6,467,819.07 



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2025  6

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:37
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      3

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9020 Airport Capital Projects Fund                                   FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             9020     011530       Accounts Receivable                            .00           830,223.85
             9020     016000       Due to/from Other Funds                 -15,158.00        14,945,204.58
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                            -15,158.00        15,775,428.43 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             9020     037000       Ctrl Total - Encumbrances               -15,158.00           523,338.44
             9020     037104       FB-UNASSIGNED-CTY                              .00       -16,028,611.76
             9020     037201       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Designated           15,158.00          -523,338.44
             9020     037301       Ctrl Total - Bud FB Undesignat                 .00           960,764.25
             9020     047000       Ctrl Total - Revenues                          .00          -215,090.54
             9020     057000       Ctrl Total - Expenditures                15,158.00           468,273.87
             9020     057001       Ctrl Total - Appropriations                    .00          -960,764.25
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                       15,158.00       -15,775,428.43 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                   15,158.00       -15,775,428.43 



CITY OF AUBURN

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2025  6

Report generated: 01/03/2025 13:37
User:             gklemanski
Program ID:       glbalsht

Page      4

                                                                           NET CHANGE              ACCOUNT
FUND: 9030 Airport Land Fund                                               FOR PERIOD              BALANCE 

ASSETS
             9030     011111       Investments-MM-Airpark                         .00           764,774.98
             9030     011113       Investments-MILESTONES CD                      .00               240.21
             9030     016000       Due to/from Other Funds                        .00          -525,067.06
                   TOTAL ASSETS                                                   .00           239,948.13 
FUND BALANCE                                                                                               
             9030     037104       FB-UNASSIGNED-CTY                              .00          -236,589.63
             9030     047000       Ctrl Total - Revenues                          .00            -3,358.50
                   TOTAL FUND BALANCE                                             .00          -239,948.13 
         TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE                                         .00          -239,948.13 

                                         ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Gina Klemanski **                                          



Product Pay Type 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Avgas 100LL Cash 12151.2 13030.2 8828.01 6421.4 5551.5 11580.6 8361.9
Avgas 100LL Credit Card 8324.65 8162.9 7586.3 6111.9 6675.95 4585.8 17197.8

TOTAL 100LL 20475.85 21193.1 16414.31 12533.3 12227.45 16166.4 25559.7
Jet A Fuel Cash 33050.5 39449.3 10025 9078 3185 1552 203
Jet A Fuel Contract Fuel 24990 39700 31543 44098 34828.62 58559.5 42554
Jet A Fuel Credit Card 17566.1 12677 6801 14096 15808 15971 10145

TOTAL Jet A 75606.6 91826.3 48369 67272 53821.62 76082.5 52902

*FY2020 included over 16,000 in Jet A sales to Elite Airways

Gallons Sales Value
Outside FBO Hours (0800-1700) 1087.5 6,731.59$      
Total Sales 11728.8 72,369.72$    

Quantity (gallons) by Fiscal Year

Auburn Air Center - Fuel Sales Comparison for July - December (FY19 to FY25)

QT Pod 100LL Self Serve Time of Day Sales Since Opening



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Auburn – Lewiston Municipal Airport 

Board Meeting Information Sheet 
 

Board Workshop or Meeting Date:    January 8, 2025    
 
Author:   Jonathan P. LaBonte, Airport Director 
 
Subject:   Budget Amendment for FY2025 Airfield Maintenance 
 
Information:   The Airport’s primary responsibility is safety of flight.  For a significant period of time, attention 
has been focused on other areas of activity including the FBO’s business interests and pursuing hangar 
development.  Over the last year, as part of updating capital programs at the Airport, evaluations were 
commissioned for Part 77 surfaces (three dimensional spaces above the airport and on its approach/departure 
pathes) and for wildlife management.  With new information available, and the Airport in a stronger financial 
position, it is being requested that the current fiscal year budget be amended to allow for contracted services 
and materials to be procured as soon as practical to begin improvements. 
 
Included as an attachment is the report we commissioned from the USDA wildlife expert that works with 
aviation/airports.  He highlighted a number of challenges we knew existed, and has brought to our attention 
others, in addition to recommended improvements.  A side benefit of this report having already been 
commissioned, is that we are able to submit it to the FAA to allow the relocation of our perimeter fence to be 
eligible for federal funds.  As a general aviation reliever airport, we are not required to have fencing (Part 139 
certificated airports are).  However, given the threats from wildlife, building and properly maintaining 
perimeter fencing is paramount. 
 
The requested $50,000 will not resolve all deficiencies, as these have accumulated over more than a decade.  It 
is being requested to ensure we can procure services and make some improvements now and budget into 
future fiscal years getting to a new status quo and sustaining that.  In coordination with the FAA (as addressing 
these is essential to complying with our Grant Assurances), we are drafting a formal plan for both wildlife 
management improvements and obstruction management and will be submitting those as part of our CDS 
Hangar Project grant application at the end of this month (January 2025).  Those plans will come to the Board 
of Directors as part of the FY2026 budget and workplan.  Specific projects to be targeted with this additional 
funding in FY2025 will be: 

• Airport Gate Repairs to ensure no gaps of greater than 6” 
• Drainage/ditch improvements 
• Vegetation management/obstruction removal 

 
Securing initial work in these three areas will help us better understand costs per unit and project out to budget 
appropriately to make these improvements within the operating budgets going forward versus capital requests 
to the two sponsors.  As the USDA report highlights, there are significant deferred maintenance items for inside 
the fence areas, and we are fortunately in a stronger position  
 
Airport Financial Impacts:  Up to $50,000 in additional expenitures during FY25 
 
Recommended Action: Approve Order to Increase the FY25 Airfield Maintenance Budget by $50,000 
 
Previous Meetings and History:   
 
Attachments:  USDA Wildlife Site Visit Report 



USDA  
Wildlife Services 

   Address: 
   79 Leighton Rd., Suite 12 
   Augusta, ME 04330 

Phone: 207-629-5181 
FAX:  207-629-5182 
Email:  john.j.wood@usda.gov 

 
 
DATE:   Tuesday, November 5th, 2024 
 
ADDRESS:  Jonathan LaBonte, Airport Manager, Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport 
 
 
Dear, Mr. LaBonte, 
 

This letter contains the report for the recently complete Wildlife Hazard Site Visit (WHSV) conducted 
at Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport (LEW) by USDA APHIS Wildlife Services (USDA WS) on September 20, 
2024 and September 23, 2024, regarding identification and management of wildlife hazards. The discussions 
and site visits were conducted pursuant to a request from your office to discuss current management 
practices and recommendations implemented at LEW and to discuss current wildlife hazards.  The meeting 
and site visits and the recommendations and information contained in this letter, together constitute the 
Initial Consultation provided to LEW by USDA WS.  The WHSV was conducted in compliance with FAA 
Advisory Circular 150/5200-38. Wildlife hazard management recommendations in this letter are based on 
observations made within two visits/days and are limited in scope given the short duration of the survey 
period. This letter report concludes the Initial Consultation phase of our involvement. Mitigating wildlife 
hazards hereafter would be conducted upon request, as negotiated and described in the continuance of our 
current Cooperative Service Agreement. 

 WS conducted the bird surveys during the morning (6:30– 830 AM) and mid-day (12:45–2:15 PM) of 
September 20th, and the evening (4:30-6:30 PM) of September 23rd; the night survey for mammals was 
conducted on September 23rd from 7:30-10:00 PM. General observations, fence and habitat analysis was 
conducted between surveys. September was chosen because it coincides with the Fall bird migration when 
bird abundances are at their peak. Survey points were positioned around the airport to get a complete 
representation of habitat attractants; survey point 14 was discontinued due to access availability overlooking 
Taylor Pond (positioned at a known attractant for ring-billed gulls in the area) (Figure 1). Bird surveys were 
conducted by listening and observing birds within the survey area surrounding each point. Mammal surveys 
were conducted at night, using spotlights and thermal binoculars and in a way that fully encompasses the 
airfield.  



 

                                                Figure 1. An aerial image of the bird survey points. 
 

A total of 277 birds (12 species) were observed (Table 1) and a total of 7 mammals (4 species) were 
observed. Surveys points 7, 5, and 4 produced the most birds observed, particularly American crows (Table 
1). This is not an exhaustive list of wildlife species that utilize LEW throughout the year, only those present 
and observed on during this WHSV. American crows constituted 72.2% of all birds observed making them the 
most hazardous bird species at LEW during the WHSV. European starlings (5.1%), American kestrels (2.5%), 
wild turkeys (2.5%), ring-billed gulls (2.1%), and turkey vultures (1.4%) were also observed with relative 
significance during the WHSV and are considered to be threats to aviation safety (Table 2).  

Table 1. Total number of birds, and American crows observed by survey point at LEW during the WHSV. 

Survey Point Total # of Birds Observed # of American crows Observed 
7 56 54 
5 52 47 
4 42 39 

10 22 12 
9 20 6 
6 19 15 

13 15 12 
11 13 0 
8 12 7 
2 11 3 
1 8 1 
3 4 4 

14 3 0 
12 0 0 



 

No Federal threatened or endangered wildlife species were observed; sparrows were observed but positive 
identification was limited given their size and movements in the shrubs and long grass. 

Table 2. Species and number of birds observed by USDA Wildlife Services during wildlife surveys conducted at 
Auburn Lewiston Airport during the WHSV. 
 

Species # Birds Observed % of Total 
American crow 200 72.20% 

Sparrow 21 7.60% 
European starling 14 5.10% 
American kestrel 7 2.50% 
Northern flicker 7 2.50% 

Wild turkeys 7 2.50% 
Blue jay 6 2.10% 

Ring-billed gull 6 2.10% 
Turkey vulture 4 1.40% 

Blue bird 2 0.72% 
Mourning dove 2 0.72% 
Coopers hawk 1 0.36% 

TOTAL 277   
 

Most observations occurred during morning surveys (Table 3). 

Table 3. Number of birds observed in the morning, mid-day, and evening bird surveys by USDA Wildlife Services at 
LEW during the WHSV. 
 

AM Total Birds Observed Mid-day Total Birds Observed PM Total Birds Observed 
183 49 45 

 

While conducting the evening bird survey, an employee at LEW informed air-traffic that a white-tailed deer 
was seen crossing Runway 4-22 at the mid-field toward the terminal apron. The deer was then observed 
running back across the runway from west to east and into the large patch of woods to the northeast of the 
light beacon. Later, a white-tailed deer, believed to be the same one from earlier, was observed inside the 
fence on the southwest portion of the airfield, ultimately running across the Runway 4 threshold. During the 
general observation period, between survey points, fresh beaver dams were discovered inside the fence, 
impounding water, on the southeastern most point of the airfield. Numerous coyote tracks, scats, and dig-
unders were observed as well.  



During the night survey, a single deer was observed to the 
east of the Runway intersections. Furthermore, two coyotes were 
observed, one to the east of the Runway 22 threshold which was 
lethally removed, and one to the east of Runway 4. Additional 
sightings include a skunk and three opossums (Figure 2). 

Habitat features that may attract and support wildlife at 
LEW  were:  1) fresh water in the form of streams, wetlands, and 
ditches, 2) shrubs, and wetland vegetation along ditches and in edges 
between woodlands and grassy areas, 3) short grass adjacent to 
runways and taxiways, (4) long grass; typically occurring further 
from the movement areas, (5) Upland forest consisting of old and 
young growth-mixed forested habitat.  The biodiversity in habitat 
features and current habitat management practices are directly 
contributing to the overall attractiveness of the airfield. Based on 
bird and mammal observations, the biggest attractant on the airfield would 
 have to be associated with American crow abundance. Most American crows were seen feeding in the short 
grass habitat in the movement areas to the north of the Runway 17-35 and Runway 4-22 intersection (the 
northern end of the airfield). However, the large expanses of forested land combined with slow moving, 
heavily vegetated wetland streams, and varying grass lengths make the airfield attractive to many hazardous 
wildlife species. 

Based on these observations, and LEW bird strike records, the following general recommendations 
are provided: 

1. Track Wildlife Strikes.  LEW personnel have only reported four strikes since 1999 (Table 5). 

Table 5. Wildlife strike records for Auburn Lewiston Airport. 
  

Date Species Runway  Comments 
8/10/1999 Herring gull  22   

11/28/2000 Snow bunting  4   
11/1/2003 Unknown bird - small  22   
5/8/2006 Unknown bird - large  4 Large, white bird; significant damage to right wing 

 

 It is strongly encouraged that LEW improve strike reporting efforts and knowledge through 
continued education; WS offers many wildlife hazard training opportunities throughout the year 
that emphasize the importance of strike reporting, accuracy, species identification and snarge 
(genetic material/tissue left behind on aircraft or discovered on the airfield) collection, and 
more. Strike reporting is vital for discovering trends, identifying strike risk associated with each 
species on the airfield, and improving and appropriately focusing on those species that are 
known wildlife hazards at LEW. Different species pose different types of hazards during different 
times of the year and therefore, management actions differ based on species behavior and 
ecology. The staff at the Smithsonian Institute, Feather Indentifcation Lab receive the snarge 

Figure 2. Night Survey results at LEW 



submitted by airports around the country and can identify the submitted genetic material to 
species; therefore, there should rarely be any entry with an “unknown” species. Without 
knowing the species, managers and biologists have very little information to analyze and 
improve management methods. Furthermore, without a phase of flight, height, or carcass found 
written in the strike report, the Smithsonian Institute, Feather lab staff are unable to attribute 
the strike to the airport and the report will go un-used and therefore will be useless. It is strongly 
recommended that LEW implement these strike reporting techniques. Runway, taxiway, and 
airfield inspections should include a thorough, daily search for wildlife strikes/remains.  

Wildlife strikes are deemed to have occurred when: 1) a pilot reports striking a bird or mammal, 
2) aircraft maintenance personnel identify damage as having been caused by wildlife, 3) ground 
personnel see wildlife collide with an aircraft, or 4) wildlife remains are found on airside 
pavement area or within 200 feet of a runway, unless another reason for the animal’s death is 
identified.  The fourth category of this definition, the collection of bird carcasses near movement 
areas, usually constitutes the greatest proportion of an airport’s wildlife strike record. LEW 
should report strikes from all four categories. Do not rely only on pilot-reported strikes.  These 
typically represent less than 25% of all strikes that occur.  Pavement and grassy areas should be 
searched daily to locate and collect carcasses.  On-line wildlife strike reporting can be completed 
at this website: https://wildlife.faa.gov/home.  Strike forms should be printed out and 
maintained in a logbook at LEW.    

2.  Provide Training for LEW Wildlife Control Personnel. LEW airport personnel involved in wildlife 
hazard control should be periodically trained to optimize the effectiveness of methods, and to ensure 
continued compliance with Federal/State permits.  WS provides a 1-day training course for airport 
personnel which covers topics such as bird identification, bird survey procedures, laws and permits, 
wildlife attractant identification, and safe/effective use of firearms, pyrotechnics, and other tools.  
LEW should consider firearms training for staff associated with wildlife hazard management.  When 
new wildlife control personnel are added, LEW should register them for the next available training.  
A record of all training received should be maintained. 

3.  Review all New Landscaping/Development Plans for Wildlife Hazards.  All landscaping and airport 
development plans should be reviewed by a Qualified Airport Wildlife Biologist (QAWB) to identify 
potential wildlife attractants and hazard potential.  Construction projects can create hazards and may 
have unintended consequences that impact the airport during and after completion. Vegetation that 
provides fruits, nuts, and nesting/roosting sites should be avoided.  Dense stands of evergreens and 
deciduous trees that provide roosting habitat should not be developed or encouraged. Requests by 
state agencies for management of threatened and endangered species should be carefully reviewed 
by a QAWB to ensure that the request isn’t going to increase threats to aviation safety. LEW should 
refer to Cert Alert 06-07 “Requests by State Wildlife Agencies to Facilitate and Encourage Habitat for 
State-Listed Threatened and Endangered Species and Species of Special Concern on Airports” 
(Appendix A). Airfield improvement projects should incorporate converting these areas to grass and 
LEW should always use tall fescue grass species, preferably Kentucky 31. Research has found this 
species of grass to be unpalatable to wildlife, to outcompete native grasses, and it does not produce a 
seed-head until late-stage development, all of which are ideal for airport grass cover. Airport 
improvement projects should not create diversity in habitat; many projects can create water 

https://wildlife.faa.gov/home


impoundments, temporary standing water, areas of dirt/mounds, utilize varying seed type for 
grasses, or result in a varied grass height which are all attractive to wildlife. In addition to airport 
construction projects, efforts should be made to participate in the planning and design phases of any 
encroaching development in surrounding communities and municipalities. 

4.  Water Management.  Whenever possible, all standing water should be eliminated from the airport.  
Fresh water in temporary pools on pavement surfaces, wet grassy areas, ditches and drains, 
wetlands, and ponds provide a very strong attractant to wildlife, including mallard ducks, Canada 
geese, blackbirds, gulls, and other birds and mammals. Beavers have created dams at LEW, 
impounding water and creating wetland habitat. It is strongly recommended that trapping be 
conducted and water flow restored. Routine monitoring of this area, in the southwest corner of the 
AOA, is recommended. Numerous streams exist in the AOA, all of which contain overgrown wetland 
vegetation that impedes water flow off the airport and attracts wildlife (Figure 3).  

 

Figure 3. Streams (blue), and associated wetland vegetation (green) discovered at LEW. 
 
 

Although not detected during the survey, temporary pools on pavement surfaces can be dissipated 
through sweeping, repaving to increase camber, and pavement grooving. Wetland management to 
eliminate their attractant value to wildlife should be coordinated with the Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection.  If possible, on-airport wetlands with standing water should be modified 
to eliminate the water and/or bird access.  Ditches should be covered or otherwise modified and 
replaced by underground systems.  If that is not practical, ditches should be cleared of vegetation and 
ditch slopes should be modified to permit easy access by mowing equipment (Figures 4 and 5). 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 4. An example of a stream/ditch improvement.               Figure 5. An example of a stream/ditch at LEW. 

Un-grated culverts that run underneath the fence also exist at LEW and were bringing large volumes 
of water on the airfield and allowing wildlife access to the airfield (Figure 6). 

 

Figure 6. An un-grated culvert at LEW. 

5.  Vegetation Management.    

Vegetation Management is one of the most effective ways to reduce wildlife hazards at an airport. 
The promotion of a monoculture habitat is the primary goal; ultimately, reducing the diversity of 
plant species will create a less attractive habitat for most hazardous wildlife species. 

Grass management should be geared toward the most hazardous species that are influenced by grass 
height but are not easily discouraged through other mitigation efforts; specifically, harassment, lethal 
removal efforts and trapping. American crows were by far the most abundant species observed at 
LEW, and they prefer shorter grass habitat for ease of foraging and maneuverability; therefore, it is 
recommended that LEW initiate a taller grass management program that falls between 8 and 12 



inches in height. It is understood that the FAA requires shorter grass adjacent to airfield signage and 
structures and that airports often need to keep grass shorter along taxiways, runways, and perimeter 
roads; however, it is not recommended to exceed the minimum distance required and instead, LEW 
should promote 8-12 inches in height wherever feasible. 

In addition, the grass cover at LEW is a mixed composition including various plant species and is not 
uniform in height (Figure 7). The diverse vegetation typically grows at different speeds which allows 
flowers to emerge and seed-heads to form (a food source for many birds). The goal should be to 
create a uniform grass height of 8-12” throughout the airfield. 

 

Figure 7. Varied grass heights and species diversity at LEW. 
 

Mowing often results in displacing small mammals, causing them to be vulnerable to predators such 
as raptors and canines. Furthermore, it results in insects being exposed or destroyed during the 
process, attracting birds such as American crows. LEW should consider mowing at night to reduce 
this attraction if bird activity increases during or immediately following mowing. In the event 
abundance increases, dispersal techniques and lethal reinforcement while mowing should be 
utilized. Additionally, insect control measures should be taken to limit availability of insect foods for 
American crows, gulls and kestrels. American crows were observed digging up the grass alongside 
TWY alpha, in search of insects (likely grubs). Insect control measures may be necessary – especially 
in the north end of the airfield (survey points 7, 5 and 4) where American crow abundance was 
highest. 

Those areas of bare/sandy ground should be improved to grow the recommended grass and 
maintained at the 8-12 inches in height. These areas are preferred by many bird species such as 
mourning doves, killdeer, sparrows, and eastern meadowlarks. These species often find foraging 
opportunities in this cover type, ranging from small seeds or insects, such as ants. Airfield 



improvement projects should incorporate converting these areas to grass and LEW should always 
use tall fescue grass species, preferably Kentucky 31.  

Wetland vegetation (Figures 8 and 9 are examples found at LEW), especially those areas depicted in 
Figure 3, should be removed, filled, and graded to facilitate mowing. LEW should work closely with 
the Maine Department of Environmental Protection to accomplish these goals.  

          

Figure 8. An example of wetland vegetation at LEW.               Figure 9. An example of wetland vegetation at LEW 

Trees, shrubs, and brush exist throughout the air operations area (AOA) and should be completely 
removed and maintained as 8-12” grass. These large expanses of forested habitat comprise 
approximately 25-30% of the airfield and provide food, cover, nesting, roosting, loafing and perching 
opportunities for many species, including mammals such as white-tailed deer, coyotes, skunks, and 
opossums (all of which were observed during the survey period) (Figures 10 and 11). White-tailed 
deer have been documented numerous times at LEW and have ample cover and foraging 
opportunities in these areas which allow them to persist inside the AOA for long periods of time.   



 

Figure 10. An example of forested habitat at LEW.           

      

Figure 11. Forested habitat at LEW (shaded brown areas).           



Brushy areas along ditches and streams should be mowed and maintained clear of vegetation, to 
increase runoff and eliminate wildlife habitat where animals would nest, feed, and roost/loaf.  

The new recommended grass management plan should be as follows:  

 With the exception of those areas that must be shorter grass for airfield compliance, 
maintain all grass at a height of 8-12” 

 Mowing should occur as often as needed to maintain this grass height. It is understood that 
the current grass management excludes mowing between May 1 and August 1 when “birds” 
(presumed to be referencing state threatened upland sandpipers) could be present. This 
strategy could result in increasing wildlife hazards, especially if it allows the grass to get 
beyond 12” tall; at that height, small mammal abundance could increase and ultimately 
increase the presence of large raptors, and grasses over 12” tend to produce seed-heads and 
create a diversity of species which produce food and cover for birds and mammals. Upland 
sandpipers are a threat aviation safety and are ranked as the 28th most hazardous species to 
aviation safety (American crows are ranked 19th) (Advisory Circular 150/5200-38). 
Therefore, their presence on the airfield should not be promoted. Given the risk of wildlife 
strikes, airports are also dangerous environments for birds and mammals; therefore, 
discouraging wildlife on airports enhances survival.  

 There should be complete uniformity of 8-12” grass height, and therefore no areas outside of 
those required for airport compliance, should be maintained below this height. 

 Burning should be done with caution. Without surveying the results of such an effort, it is 
unknown how this could negatively affect the safety of operations as it pertains to wildlife 
hazards. However, grasses new growth/grasses below 8” would be considered highly 
attractive to many hazardous wildlife species that exist at LEW, and therefore would be 
discouraged.  

 Reseeding projects should utilize a tall fescue grass species, preferably Kentucky 31 as 
previously described.  

 Construction projects should be completed in a manner that minimally disturbs the 
recommended 8-12” grass height.  
 

6.  Operation of Wildlife Hazard Management Patrols.  Wildlife hazard management patrols by 
informed, motivated and equipped personnel is the most important action LEW can take to identify 
and reduce wildlife hazards to aircraft and public safety.  The top priority is to safely reduce the 
extent to which wildlife interact with aircraft. Members of the patrol must be motivated to address 
wildlife hazard situations immediately and continually until the threat is resolved. LEW staff should 
be trained to identify birds, other wildlife, and wildlife attractants, and must be capable and willing to 
employ all legal, practical, and necessary tools to reduce wildlife hazards. Notably, patrol personnel 
must be capable of employing the use of specialty equipment such as firearms, electronic devices, 
propane cannons, pyrotechnic launchers, and other tools and devices that require strict adherence to 
safety protocols.  Personnel who are unwilling or unable to adhere to these requirements should not 
participate in wildlife hazard patrols. Typical responsibilities of the patrol should be to search for and 
report wildlife strikes, identify and communicate wildlife attractants to LEW management, harass 
wildlife away from aircraft movement areas (using pyrotechnics, live rounds, repellents, scaring 
devices, etc.) , document wildlife observations, and other activities directed at reducing wildlife 



hazards.  Patrol personnel must be capable of recognizing if/when lethal control of wildlife is 
necessary to protect human safety on the airport.  Responsible conduct of wildlife removal, pursuant 
to Federal/State permits includes proper species identification, safe and effective 
shooting/trapping/immobilization of animals, and appropriate reporting of take to the U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service and/or the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife (MDIFW).   

Currently, LEW does not have a federal depredation permit which allows the lethal removal and/or 
trapping and translocation of migratory birds that are posing a threat to aviation safety. At one time, 
LEW did have an active state depredation permit (issued by MDIFW) that allows the lethal removal 
of mammals, non-migratory birds (i.e. wild turkeys), and those migratory bird species of special 
concern that may be approved, but that permit needs to be renewed. MDIFW may also allow airports 
to harass certain threatened or endangered species that are threatening aviation safety. It is 
imperative to identify the birds on the airport and involved in strikes to determine the most 
appropriate and effective action to take so hazardous conditions are mitigated.  Contact USDA WS for 
assistance with renewing and acquiring depredation permits. It is highly recommended that LEW 
acquire/renew their permits to keep them active. In the event that permits are not active, or LEW 
feels that additional, professional assistance is needed to resolve the issue, it is recommended they 
utilize additional resources; currently there is an active Cooperative Service Agreement with USDA 
WS.  

7.  Deer resistant Fencing.  A deer resistant fence 
that is at least 10 feet tall (topped by 2 strands of 
barbed wire) is the most effective long-term deer 
damage management method for use on the airport.  
LEW current fence has many areas where deer 
could crawl under, and open gates and roadways 
provide possible travel corridors. Appendix B 
contains a complete report for all issues recorded 
during the WHSV. Typical perimeter fencing that 
eliminates public access to airfields is inadequate 
for deer control.  Installation of deer resistant 
fencing can be expensive and is usually considered 
and implemented over several fiscal years.   

Gaps under fencing can sometimes be fixed using patches of fencing affixed to the bottom, or with 
with products such as “dig defence”; the “max protect gap repair”. This product does appear to be a 
good option and has been used with success at another airport in Maine. This is not a perfect 
substitute for the FAA’s wildlife exclusion fence (Part 139 CertAlert 16-03, Recommended Wildlife 
Exclusion Fencing, 4 August 2016), which is the most ideal fence improvement for hazardous wildlife 
species. If possible, it is recommended that LEW pursue this type of wildlife exclusion fence for 
maximum results. Of notable importance, this CertAlert states that “deer have been observed 
squeezing through a 7.5-inch gap at the bottom of a fence and coyotes can fit through 6 inch x 4 inch 
gaps under a fence and they will also dig under the fence to access the airfield”. There are many fence 
issues that meet or exceed these criteria at LEW and therefore would allow deer and other mammals 
onto the airfield. 

Figure 12. A section of fence at LEW       

 



8.  Maintain an Airport Wildlife Log.  The log should contain pertinent wildlife hazard management 
information (strike reports, summaries, wildlife control activity forms, wildlife 
observations/surveys, personnel training, etc.) in one readily accessible source, so that LEW 
personnel can review and add to it as appropriate.  The wildlife log, if properly maintained, will assist 
in determining appropriate strategies to reduce hazards and in predicting when hazards might 
develop, based on past patterns.   

Based on this Initial Consultation, and in consideration of FAA requirements, I recommend that a 
Wildlife Hazard Assessment (WHA) be conducted at LEW. The WHA would be based on a yearlong, fully 
comprehensive survey of wildlife and attractants that is conducted by a QAWB. The WHA could serve, if 
determined necessary and appropriate by LEW and the FAA, as the basis for the airport’s Wildlife Hazard 
Management Plan pursuant to FAR 139.337 (c).  USDA WS would be able to assist LEW by conducting the 
WHA and by helping to develop the WHMP, upon your approval of a Cooperative Service Agreement.  If you 
are interested in having WS conduct the yearlong assessment, please contact me so we can initiate the 
planning process.   
 

I trust this information is useful to you in identifying and managing wildlife hazards at LEW.  I look 
forward to continuing to work with LEW to assess and mitigate wildlife hazards to aircraft and public safety. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
____________________________ 
John Wood 
Qualified Airport Wildlife Biologist 
Staff Wildlife Biologist 
USDA APHIS WS, Maine 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
(Cert Alert 06-07) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
(Fence Improvement Recommendations for LEW) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Number on 
Map 

GPS Location Issue Picture 

1 44.04991, -70.28872 7-8” Gap all 
through this 

area 

NA 

2 44.04951, -70.28768 Gate 19: 7” gap  NA 
3 44.04876, -70.28844 Gate 2: 7” gap 

between posts 

 
4 44.04667, -70.28956 Gate 3: 6” gap 

underneath 
NA 

5 44.04367, -70.29032 14” Dig-under 

 
6 44.04279, -70.29087 12” gap under 

fence 
NA 



7 44.04211, -70.29126 Washout: 15” 
under fence 

 
8 44.04079, -70.2901 Fence leaning 

hard  
NA 

9 44.04022, -70.28843 12” Gap  NA 
10 44.0404, -70.28616 10” Dig-under 

(very active) 

 
11 44.0408, -70.28367 Fence Gaps  NA 
12 44.04096, -70.28181 Dig-under NA 
13 44.04089, -70.28153 14” Gap – Big 

Area 

 
14 44.04078, -70.28087 Gap under fence NA 
15 44.04064, -70.28009 Gap under fence NA 



16 44.04123, -70.27922 Holes in 
fence/dig-under 

NA 

17 44.04162, -70.27901 10” Dig-under 

 
18 44.04687, -70.27878 Gate and fence 

gaps 
NA 

19 44.04763, -70.27822 Dig-under NA 

20 44.04766, -70.27722 Culvert has no 
grate. Fence 

gaps around the 
culvert as well 

 
21 44.05529, -70.27656 Culvert has no 

grate 
NA 

22 44.05588, -70.27786 Gap under fence NA 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Figure A. Fence issues 1-4 as identified in the formal Wildlife Hazard Site Visit 

 
Figure B. Fence issues 5-17 as identified in the formal Wildlife Hazard Site Visit 

 



 
Figure C. Fence issues 18-20 as identified in the formal Wildlife Hazard Site Visit 

 



 
Figure D. Fence issues 21 and 22 as identified in the formal Wildlife Hazard Site Visit 

 


	250108-Airport-Board-Packet
	250108 DRAFT Airport Agenda
	I. Consent Items
	II. Minutes
	1. November 13, 2024 Meeting
	VI. Old Business - None

	241113 DRAFT Airport Minutes
	I. Consent Items
	II. Minutes
	1. October 16, 2024 Meeting – On a motion by M. Garside and second by D. Chittim, minutes were approved 5-0-1 (D. Chittim abstaining)
	VI. Old Business - None

	250108 Budget Amendment Info Sheet
	LEW Initial Consultation Letter

	Fuel Sales Comparison FYQ1 and 2
	Summary Expense
	Summary Revenue
	Trial Balance

